
POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING
AGENDA

 
Date: June 8, 2021
Time: 7:00 pm
Location: Microsoft Teams

Pages

1. Call to Order

1.1. Opening Prayer (P. Murphy)

2. Approvals

2.1. Approval of Agenda

2.2. Approval of Minutes - May 11, 2021 1 - 6

3. Declarations of Conflict of Interest

4. Action Items

4.1. Policy I-06 Delegation to the Board (B. Agnew) 7 - 11

4.2. Policy I-11 International Student Admission Requirements (Fee Paying
Students) (A. Lofts, A. Cordeiro)

12 - 17

4.3. Policy I-23 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent Involvement
Committee (N. Dinolfo)

18 - 23

4.4. Policy I-26 Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board (N.
Guzzo, K. Kelly)

24 - 29

4.5. Policy II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises (N. Guzzo, K. Kelly) 30 - 32

4.6. Policy V-08 School Anniversary Celebrations (L. Naar, A. Swinden) 33 - 35

4.7. Policy V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a New School (L. Naar, A.
Swinden)

36 - 39

4.8. Policy V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a Major  Addition to a School (L.
Naar, A. Swinden)

40 - 43

4.9. Rescind Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities (A. Lofts) 44 - 46

4.10. Rescind Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget (A. Lofts) 47 - 50

4.11. HCDSB Procedural By-Laws (P. Murphy) 51 - 70

5. Discussion Items

6. Information Items



6.1. Administrative Procedure VI-17 International Student Admission  Requirements
(Non-Resident) (A. Lofts, A. Cordeiro)

71 - 77

6.2. Administrative Procedure VI-61 Recognition and Acknowledgement of
Dignitaries, Board Officials at Board and School Events (L. Naar, A. Swinden)

78 - 81

6.3. Administrative Procedure VI-83 Video Surveillance (M. Grysiuk) 82 - 94

6.4. Administrative Procedure VI-84 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent
Involvement Committee (N. Dinolfo)

95 - 102

6.5. Administrative Procedure VI-94 International Student Program - Agents of Fee
Paying Students (A. Lofts, A. Cordeiro)

103 - 106

6.6. 2020-2021 Policy Committee Work Plan (E. Bakaic) 107 - 109

7. Miscellaneous Information

8. In Camera

9. Motion to Excuse Absent Committee Members

10. Motion to Adjourn/ Closing Prayer (T. O’Brien) 



 

 

 

 

1



 

2



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3



 

 

4



 

5



 

 

6



 

 

                        

7



 

                        

 

 

 

 

8

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/2016%20Procedural%20By-Laws%20-%20June%2021,%202016.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/V-18%20Community%20Engagement%20and%20Public%20Consultation%20Policy.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10



 

 

 

 

11



 

 

                        

 

 

 

12



 

13



 

 

II-39 Progressive Discipline and Safety in Schools Code of Conduct – Suspensions and Expulsions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-22%20Admission%20to%20Schools%20Elementary%20and%20Secondary.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://layoutview.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-17%20International%20Student%20Admission%20Requirements%20(Non-Resident).pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-19%20Admission%20to%20Schools%20Elementary%20and%20Secondary.pdf
https://layoutview.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-94%20International%20Student%20Program%20-%20Agents%20of%20Fee%20Paying%20Students.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02#BK62


 

 

 International Student Program

 

 

 

 

 

15

http://isp.hcdsb.org/
http://isp.hcdsb.org/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/policyfunding/strategyK12.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 

17



 

 

                        

18



 

19



 

                        

 

 

20

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-84%20Catholic%20School%20Councils%20and%20Catholic%20Parent%20Involvement%20Committee.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-34%20(B)%20Reimbursement%20of%20Board%20Business%20Expenses%20for%20Trustees%20and%20External%20Members%20of%20Board%20Committees.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-34%20(B)%20Reimbursement%20of%20Board%20Business%20Expenses%20for%20Trustees%20and%20External%20Members%20of%20Board%20Committees.pdf
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwib1eLnocjgAhXSY98KHe-_BUUQFjAAegQICxAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwjtwtWG-5TSAhUJ7oMKHXyMCRUQFggaMAA&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F000612&usg=AFQjCNF3al-hjIZSjgqa7dum9--JSWIZ8g&sig2=QxAiJvnqwIIomxY7m8zsFA&bvm=bv.147134024,d.amc
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjFz4a8ofDdAhVF2IMKHRZLCdsQFjAAegQICBAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2Fr10330&usg=AOvVaw2nXy6O96ym775qOtnLQjgc
http://www.hcdsb.org/Parents/CSCouncil/Documents/Catholic%20School%20Council%20Resource%20Binder.pdf
http://www.hcdsb.org/Parents/CSCouncil/Documents/Catholic%20School%20Council%20Resource%20Binder.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/general/elemsec/council/council02.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

 

22



 

 

 

23



 

 

                        

24



 

25



Policy No. I-26

Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board
Adopted:
September 15, 1998

Last Reviewed/Revised:
June 9, 2020 June 08, 2021

Next Scheduled Review: 2022-2023 2023-2024

Associated Policies & Procedures:
VI-15 Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board

Purpose
This policy provides for the direct representation of the interests of students on the Board in
accordance with the provisions of the Education Act, Ontario Regulation 07/07 and any
guidelines issued by the Minister of Education under paragraph 3.5 of subsection 8(1) of the
Education Act.

Application and Scope
This policy applies to the process of electing Student Trustees to the Board.

References
Education Act, Ontario Regulation 07/07

Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 1997

Education Act s8(1)

Ontario Regulation 298 (Operation of Schools – General)

Principles
● The education of students in the Board’s Catholic schools is a shared responsibility

involving home, school, parish and the extended Catholic educational community.

● The Board endorses the principle of providing for the direct representation of the
interests of students on the Board.

● The Board endorses a process whereby student representation is determined in an open
and democratic manner.

● The Board endorses student representation on the Board as a means of fostering the
development of future Catholic community leaders.

www.hcdsb.org Page 1 of 4
26

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-15%20Student%20Trustees.pdf
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiDvfPepPDdAhWKn4MKHarsBqUQFjAAegQICRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F070007&usg=AOvVaw3F-UuABDnC9Nakp7u6LHnw
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi18I7ppPDdAhWWw4MKHbckBRAQFjAAegQIBxAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90m50&usg=AOvVaw03qj3LyyO6T4UDQUf0peZI
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjpjdv4pPDdAhUo44MKHeTkBPkQFjAAegQIBhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjfneSGpfDdAhWKn4MKHarsBqUQFjAAegQICRAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F900298&usg=AOvVaw2ZpC1zmHD9Tq1yr7MzX5Sq


Policy No. I-26 | Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board

● A student trustee of the Halton Catholic District School Board is a model of servant
leadership for the Catholic educational community in Halton and the wider Catholic
community.

● A student trustee will be excluded from any matters where they have a conflict of interest
in accordance with the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act 1997, as amended.

Requirements
● This policy and the associated Administrative Procedure VI-15 Student Trustees of the

Halton Catholic District School Board shall be in accordance with provisions of the
Education Act, Ontario Regulation 07/07 and any guidelines issued by the Minister of
Education under paragraph 3.5 of subsection 8(1) of the Education Act.

● Qualified student nominees will hold qualifications and endorsements as stated below:

o active Parish membership and regular mass attendance;

o a letter of endorsement from Catholic leaders from the school community, i.e. a
School Chaplain

o a letter of endorsement from the school principal;

o a letter of endorsement from their parish priest;

o a letter of endorsement from the school Student Council;

o full-time Catholic student, in good standing, and must be at least a senior in
Grade 11 by September 1st of the subsequent year;

a history of leadership interest as exhibited through work on the student senate, the
student council, social justice groups, parish youth organizations, liturgical
programming and/or music ministry; community youth organizations; and

o beginning knowledge of current key issues affecting Catholic education.

● A person is qualified to act as a student trustee if he or she is enrolled in the senior
division of a school of the board and is:

a. a full-time pupil; or

b. an exceptional pupil in a special education program for whom the Board has
reduced the length of the instructional program on each school day under
subsection 3 (3) of Regulation 298 of the Revised Regulations of Ontario, 1990
(Operation of Schools – General) made under the Act, so long as the pupil would
be a full-time pupil of the program had not been reduced.

● Each secondary school is expected to elect a qualified senior student nominee to the
group of prospective student trustees who will be interviewed and voted into office by the
Student Senate. Schools not advancing a nominee shall provide a written rationale to
the Superintendent of Education.

● Three student trustees shall be elected to the Board. No two students shall be from the
same municipality.

www.hcdsb.org Page 2 of 4
27



Policy No. I-26 | Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board

● The student trustee(s) shall be elected by the Student Senate no later than February 28
in each school year, with the understanding that each will begin their term of one school
year from August 1st in the year they are elected.

● A student trustee(s) of the Board will participate at meetings of the Board and at
meetings of Committees of the Board in accordance with Ontario Regulation 07/07 made
under the Education Act. Subsection 5(5) of the Act provides that a student trustee(s)
may attend all closed (in camera) meetings, with the exception of those “when the
subject matter under consideration involves the disclosure of intimate, personal or
financial information in respect of a member of the Board or Committee, an employee or
prospective employee of the Board or a student or his or her parent or guardian.”

● Student trustees are not considered elected members of the Board and therefore not
entitled to a binding vote – that is, their vote is not included in the official vote count;
however, a student trustee does have the right to have their vote recorded in the Board
minutes if they request it.  In addition, a student trustee may request that a matter before
a Board, or any of its committees, be put to a vote, in which case there must be two
votes:

1) a non-binding vote that includes the student trustee’s vote; and

2) a recorded binding vote that does not include the student trustee’s vote.

A student trustee is not entitled to move a motion, but is entitled to suggest a motion on
any matter at a meeting of the board or of one of its committees on which the student
trustee sits.  If no member of the board or committee, as the case may be, moves the
suggested motion, the record shall show the suggested motion.

● In the event a student trustee does not complete the term of appointment, the Board will
hold a by-election.

● Upon completion of their respective terms of appointment, each student trustee(s) shall,
subject to Board approval, be acknowledged for service to the Board in the following
manner:

o each individual will be provided with a letter of commendation signed by the Chair
of the Board; and

o each individual will be awarded an honorarium/scholarship of $2,500.00 and
other such forms of recognition or support as may be determined by the Board.  If
a student holds office for a portion of a year, $2500 pro-rated according to the
portion of the year the student holds office

● The student trustee(s) shall remain in good standing at a Halton Catholic District School
Board secondary school for the entire school year of their appointment(s).

APPROVED: Regular Meeting of the Board

AUTHORIZED BY: _______________________________________

www.hcdsb.org Page 3 of 4
28



Policy No. I-26 | Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board

Chair of the Board

www.hcdsb.org Page 4 of 4
29



 

 

                        

30



Policy No. II-09

Opening and Closing Exercises
Adopted:
February 20, 1987

Last Reviewed/Revised:
October 15, 2019 June 08, 2021

Next Scheduled Review: 2022-2023 2023-2024

Associated Policies & Procedures: N/A

Purpose
To provide direction to all members of schools under the Board’s jurisdiction with respect to
requirements on opening or closing exercises as stated in the Education Act, the Safe Schools
Act, 2000, Ontario Regulation 298, and attendant regulations, and to promote the
distinctiveness, values, and mission of the Halton Catholic District School Board.

Application and Scope
This policy applies to all schools under the jurisdiction of the Halton Catholic District School
Board.

References
Education Act

Safe Schools Act, 2000

Ontario Regulation 298

Attendant Regulations

HCDSB Mission Statement

Principles
● The religious environment and climate of the Catholic School System permeates

throughout the whole of school life.

● Catholic schools endorse and promote the mandate, values, traditions, and
distinctiveness of the Catholic School System.

● Catholic schools instill in students respect, loyalty, allegiance, and pride in their country.

www.hcdsb.org Page 1 of 2
31

https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwi5iuzB7vzdAhVEWq0KHXXFBu0QFjAAegQIAhAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiYyrmf7_zdAhVQMqwKHe6GAaQQFjAAegQICBAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2FS00012&usg=AOvVaw2Se8Op_50fLEs4MW7qRyAn
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwj8sLSo7_zdAhUEXa0KHbilAgoQFjAAegQIAxAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F900298&usg=AOvVaw2ZpC1zmHD9Tq1yr7MzX5Sq


Policy No. II-09 | Opening and Closing Exercises

Requirements
● Formal prayer shall form part of every opening or closing exercise.

● Land acknowledgements shall form part of every opening or closing exercise.

● Scriptural/spiritual readings may form part of every opening or closing exercise.

● Secular readings or recitations may form part of every opening or closing exercise but
may not replace scriptural/spiritual readings.

● The singing of O Canada shall form part of every opening or closing exercise. Students
and staff shall participate in the singing of O Canada.

● A student is not required to sing O Canada in the following circumstances:

o In the case of a student who is less than 18 years old, if the student’s parent or
guardian applies to the principal to be exempted from doing so.

o In the case of a student who is at least 18 years old, if the student applies to the
principal to be exempted from doing so.

APPROVED: Regular Meeting of the Board

AUTHORIZED BY: _______________________________________

Chair of the Board

www.hcdsb.org Page 2 of 2
32



 

 

                        

33



 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

34



 

 

 

 

35



 

 

                        

36



 

                        

 

 

 

 

o 

37

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/V-13%20Blessing%20and%20Rededication%20of%20a%20Major%20Addition%20to%20a%20School.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

38



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

39



 

 

                        

40



 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/V-12%20Blessing%20and%20Official%20Opening%20of%20a%20New%20School.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

42



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

43



 

 

                        

44



 

 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

45



 

 

 

 

 

46



 

 

                        

 

47



 

 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48



 

 

 

49



 

 

 

50



 

 

                        

51



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 1 of 19 
 

HALTON CATHOLIC DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD 

PROCEDURAL BY-LAWS 

JUNE 2016 

1.  PREAMBLE 

1.1  Education Act The provisions of the Education Act, R.S.O. 1990. c. E-2, as amended from 
time to time, and any related Ontario Regulations take precedence over 
any By-Laws formulated by the Halton Catholic District School Board; 
hereafter referred to as the Board.  

1.2  Rules and Regulations The rules and regulations contained in this By-Law shall be observed in all 
proceedings by the Board and shall be the rules and regulations for the 
order and dispatch of the business of the Board and its Committees except 
where statute or legislative regulation otherwise provides.  

1.3  Robert’s Rules of Order In any instance or instances not provided in statute or in this By-Law, 
Board Policies and Regulations or the Education Act, Robert’s Rules of 
Order shall govern insofar as they are applicable.  

 

2.  DEFINITIONS 

2.1  The singular includes the plural. 

2.2  ACT means the Education Act as amended from time to time. 

2.3  ACTION REPORT means a report that requires a resolution by the Board of Trustees.  

2.4 AD HOC COMMITTEE means a committee where Trustees may, from time to time, form working 
groups to address specific issues which shall report to the Board of 
Trustees.  Membership may include Trustees and staff and other 
individuals as appropriate.  Examples of Ad Hoc Committees include: 

 School Uniform Committee  

2.5 BOARD means the Halton Catholic District School Board which, in accordance with 
the ACT, is a Roman Catholic School Board in union with the See of Rome 
and operates in the Regional Municipality of Halton. 

2.6 CHAIR means Chair of the Board, except where otherwise indicated as meaning 
chair of any committee or sub-committee of the Board.  

2.7 COMMITTEE means any Statutory, Standing or Ad-Hoc Committee established by the 
Board. 

2.8 CONSENSUS means Trustees present at the meeting can ‘support’ or ‘live with’ a 
proposed direction or decision, without a formal call for votes.   

2.9 CONFLICT OF INTEREST means a direct or indirect pecuniary interest as defined by the Municipal 
Conflict of Interest Act R.S.O. 1990. c. M-50 as amended from time to time.  

2.10 DIRECTOR means the Director of Education who is Chief Education Officer and Chief 
Executive Officer of the school system and Secretary of the Board;  

2.11 EX OFFICIO means a member who is permitted to act by virtue of office. The ex-officio 
member does not vote and is not counted in determining a quorum.  

2.12 IN-CAMERA means a meeting of the Board or of Board Committee from which the 
public is excluded when the subject-matter under consideration involves 
matters appropriately addressed In-Camera:  
(i) The security of property of the Board 

(ii) The disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 
of a member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective 
employee of the Board or a pupil or his or her parent or guardian; 

(iii) The acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
(iv) The acquisition or disposal of property; 
(v) Decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 

52



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 2 of 19 
 

(vi) Litigation affecting the Board.  

2.13 INFORMATION REPORT means a report submitted by staff and presented at a Board meeting for 
the information of Trustees. The information is deemed to have been 
received by virtue of inclusion in the Agenda.  No action is required.  

2.14 MEETING includes a meeting of the Board and of a Committee. All meetings are 
open to the public except for In-Camera meetings as per 2.12.  

2.15 MEMBER means elected Trustee of the Board. 

2.16 MISCELLANEOUS 
INFORMATION 

means information of a general nature provided to Trustees at a Board 
meeting. The information is deemed to have been received by virtue of 
inclusion in the Agenda. No action is required. 

2.17 QUORUM 
 

means a majority of 50% or more of all members, excluding Student 
Trustees, who are entitled to vote.  

2.18 SCRUTINEER means a person who observes any process which requires oversight. The 
scrutineer observes the counting of ballot papers, and ensures that 
election rules are followed.  

2.19 SIMPLE MAJORITY means a majority of Trustees present and eligible to vote. 

2.20 SECRETARY OF THE 
BOARD 

means the Director of Education. 

2.21 STAFF REPORT means a report submitted and presented to Trustees at a Board meeting 
for the information of Trustees.  This initial report is to provide information 
and raise awareness regarding items that may subsequently become 
action reports. A follow-up report will typically be presented as an Action 
Item at a future Board meeting. 

2.22 STANDING COMMITTEE means a committee formed to deal with longstanding and ongoing issues 
relating to the decision-making responsibilities of the Board of Trustees, 
and that will periodically bring a recommendation to the Board.  Examples 
include:  

 Employee Assistance Program Committee 

 Policy Committee  

 Salary and Bargaining Advisory Committee 

2.23 STATUTORY 
COMMITTEE 

means a committee established as a result of legislation or Ministry of 
Education mandate.  These committees have Trustee representation and a 
staff person is also assigned as resource to provide expertise, 
administrative requirements and provide necessary information.  
Committees include: 

 Audit Committee 

 Special Education Advisory Committee (SEAC) Ontario Regulation 
464/07 s.1 

 Discipline Committee 

 Catholic Parent Involvement Committee (CPIC) – Ontario Ministry of 
Education, 2005  Parent Involvement Advisory Committee Policy 

 Supervised Alternative Learning (SAL) 

2.24 STUDENT TRUSTEE means the student representative elected by his/her peers to represent 
pupils on the Board in accordance with the Act and Regulations. 

2.25 TWO THIRDS means not less than two-thirds of Trustees present and eligible to vote.  

2.26 TREASURER Subsection 170 (1).1 of the Education Act requires that the Board appoint 
a Treasurer. 

2.27 TRUSTEE means a person elected, acclaimed or appointed to the office of Trustee of 
the Board pursuant to the provisions of the Municipal Elections Act 
1996.S.O. 1990. C. 32. Sched., as amended from time to time and the 
Education Act  

53



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 3 of 19 
 

2.28 VICE-CHAIR means the Vice-Chair of the Board, except where otherwise indicated as 
meaning Vice-Chair of any committee or sub-committee of the Board. 

2.29 WORKING STAFF 
COMMITTEE 

means a Committee established at the discretion of the Director which 
may, from time to time, require the participation of Trustees.   

2.30 48 HOURS means a notice that includes Saturday, Sunday and Statutory holidays. 

 

3.  
 

INAUGURAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

3.1 Date of the Inaugural 
Meeting of the Board 

In the year in which municipal elections  take place, the Inaugural Meeting 
of the Board shall be held on the first Tuesday in December commencing at 
7:00 p.m., following a 6:00 p.m. Mass. 

3.2 Purpose of Inaugural 
Meeting 

The purpose of the Inaugural Meeting shall be to fulfil the requirements of 
the Act and Regulations, including the election of the Chair and Vice-Chair. 

3.3 Presiding Officer at the 
Inaugural Meeting 

The Secretary shall act as Chair pro tem, or in the absence of the Secretary, 
his/her designate, until the Chair is elected. 

3.4 Bishop’s Attendance The Bishop or his delegates are to be invited to the Inaugural Meeting of 
the Board.  

3.5 Order of Business 1.  Eucharistic Celebration (6:00 p.m.)   
2.  Entry Procession (7:00 p.m.)  

3.  Opening Prayer and Welcoming Remarks: Director of Education  
4.  Reading of Clerk’s Notices certifying to the election of the members: 

Director of Education 
5. Remarks and Commissioning of Trustees – Bishop 

6. Declaration of Oath of Allegiance (for those members who wish to 
take the Oath of Allegiance) and Declaration of Office - Judge  

7. Declaration of Board as Legally Constituted  
8. Election / Installation / Remarks of Board Chair  

9. Election / Installation / Remarks of Board Vice-Chair 
10. Resolutions is:  

10.1 Banking Authority 
11. Expressions of Appreciation – Chair 
12. Closing Prayer and Adjournment 

3.6 PROCEDURE FOR ELECTION OF OFFICERS AT THE INAUGURAL MEETING 

3.6.1 Procedural 
Requirements 

The Secretary shall or call upon an invited judge to: 
(i) read the return of the municipal clerks certifying to the election of the 

members; 
(ii) ascertain that the members have met all procedural requirements 

and are eligible to take office;  
(iii) administer or arrange for the administering to each member of the 

Board the appropriate Declaration of Office and Oath of Allegiance 
(for those members who wish to take the Oath of Allegiance)  

(iv) declare the Board to be legally constituted. 

3.6.2 
 

Election Process 
 

The Secretary shall then conduct the election to the office of 
Chair of the Board, which shall be as follows:  All Trustees-elect 

are eligible to participate. 
(i) The Secretary shall appoint two scrutineers, whose names shall be 

recorded in the minutes.   
(ii) Nominations shall be called for the Office of Chair of the Board. 
(iii) A Student Trustee is ineligible for nomination. 
(iv) Each nomination shall require a mover and a seconder. 

54



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 4 of 19 
 

(v) Immediately after each nomination, the nominee shall confirm 
whether he/she wishes to accept or decline the nomination.  

(vi) After receiving all nominations, the Secretary shall call for 
nominations three more times, thereafter, the Secretary shall ask for 
a motion to close nominations. 

(vii) The Secretary will then ask the nominees, in the same order as they 
were nominated, if they wish to say a few words. Trustees may ask 
questions of each candidate.  

(viii) If more than one nomination is received, an election shall be 
conducted by secret ballot. 

(ix) The Secretary and/or designate shall act as election returning officer. 
(x) The Secretary shall announce the result of the ballot by declaring the 

name of the member elected and shall not declare the count. 
(xi) The member receiving a clear majority of the votes cast by all the 

members shall be declared elected.  Should no candidate receive a 
clear majority of the votes cast, the names of the candidate receiving 
the smallest number of votes shall be dropped.  The Board shall 
proceed to vote anew and so continue until a Chair is elected.  

(xii) In the case of an equality of votes at the election of a Chair or Vice-
Chair, the candidates shall draw lots to fill the position of Chair or 
Vice-Chair as the case may be pursuant to Section 208 (8) of the 
Education Act. 

(xiii) The Secretary shall announce the result of the ballot by declaring the 
name of the member elected and shall not declare the count.  

(xiv) A motion will be requested to destroy the ballots. 

3.6.3 Election of Vice-Chair The Secretary shall assume the Chair position and shall conduct the 
elections for the Vice-Chair of the Board in the manner prescribed for the 
election of the Chair, using the same procedures as set out in clause 3.6.2.  

3.6.4 Term of Office The term of office of the Chair and Vice-Chair positions and municipal 
appointment shall be for a period of one year, unless as otherwise 
required by the By-Laws of the Institution, Agency or Province to which 
the appointments are made. 

3.7 ELECTION OF OFFICERS – AT TIMES OTHER THAN THE INAUGURAL MEETING OF THE BOARD 

3.7.1 Election of Chair At the first meeting in December of each year, and at the first meeting 
after a vacancy occurs in the office of Chair, the Trustees shall elect one of 
themselves to be Chair. 

3.7.2 Election of Vice-Chair At the first meeting in December of each year and at the first meeting 
after a vacancy occurs in the office of Vice-Chair, the Trustees shall elect 
one of themselves to be Vice-Chair. 

3.7.3 Election Process For the purposes of section 3.7, the process outlined in Sections 3.6.2 and 
3.6.3 shall apply. 

3.8 APPOINTMENT OF TRUSTEES TO BOARD COMMITTEES 

3.8.1 Appointment process The Chair shall present for Board confirmation, Trustee appointments to 
all Standing, Statutory and Ad Hoc committees and to municipal agencies; 
or alternatively, present a date when such appointments shall be made.  
Such appointments shall be made no later than the next Regular Meeting 
of the Board.  

  

55



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 5 of 19 
 

 

4. MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 

4.1 REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS 

4.1.1 Time The Regular Meetings of the Board shall be held at the Catholic Education 
Centre at 7:30 p.m.  

4.1.2 Day The Regular Meeting of the Board shall be held on the first and third 
Tuesday of each month in the Board Room.  

4.1.3 Chairing the Meeting The Chair for each Regular Meeting of the Board will be the Chair of the 
Board or in the absence of the Chair, by the Vice-Chair of the Board. 

4.1.4 Notice The Secretary shall give each Trustee at least forty-eight (48) hours written 
notice (including Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays) of all meetings of 
the Board.  The student Trustees shall receive such notice of the meeting 
and other meetings as required.  

4.1.5 Summer Meetings There shall be no Regular Meetings scheduled from July 1st to August 31st.  
During July and August meetings may be held, as needed, at the call of the 
Chair.  The Regular Meeting of the Board, following the summer recess, 
shall be scheduled for the first Tuesday of September.  

4.1.6 Holy Week The Board, except for emergency, shall not meet during Holy Week. Any 
meeting scheduled for that week shall be re-scheduled to a date and time 
by majority vote of members.  

4.1.7 Public Attendance All meetings of the Board shall be open to the public, subject to article 
4.3.8. 

4.1.8 Adjournment Meetings of the Board shall adjourn not later than 11:00 p.m., unless two-
thirds (2/3) of the members present and voting agree to an extension of 
time.  In any event, the Board shall not conduct its business beyond 11:30 
p.m. without the unanimous consent of members’ present, save for the 
item on the table.  Unanimous consent is required every half hour 
thereafter.  

4.1.9 Cancellation of Meeting In the event of inclement weather or emergency; the Chair, in consultation 
with the Vice-Chair and the Director of Education or delegate may cancel a 
Regular Meeting of the Board. In the absence of the Chair, the Vice-Chair, 
in consultation with the Director or delegate may cancel a meeting. 

4.1.10 Notice of Cancellation Notice of cancellation of meeting, determined as provided in section 4.1.9, 
will be transmitted in the same manner as the notice of meeting.  In the 
event of inclement weather or an emergency, the Director of Education or 
delegate will notify Trustees by telephone and/or electronically and a 
notice of cancellation shall be posted at the meeting place.  

4.2 SPECIAL BOARD MEETINGS 

4.2.1 Authority to Convene Special meetings of the Board shall be scheduled on Tuesdays, where 
feasible and may be called by the Chair or shall be called upon the written 
request of five (5) members to the Secretary of the Board, specifying the 
subject(s) for which the meeting is to be held.  

4.2.2 Matters to be 
Considered 

The notice of every such Special Meeting shall state the business to be 
transacted. Notwithstanding any other provisions to the Board's By-Laws, 
no other business shall be considered except with the unanimous consent 
of Trustees present. 

4.2.3 Notice of Meeting The Secretary shall notify each member of the Board of any Special 
Meeting of the Board and distribution of Agenda and background material, 
where feasible, at least twenty-four (24) hours (excluding Saturdays and 
Sundays) previous to the time at which such meeting is to take place.  

56



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 6 of 19 
 

4.3 IN-CAMERA MEETINGS 

4.3.1 Time In-Camera Meetings of the Board shall be held prior to, and when 
necessary, following the Public Session meeting. In-Camera meetings will 
commence at 6:30 p.m. and adjourn at 7:00 p.m. in order to allow Public 
Session to begin on time.  

4.3.2 Unfinished Business Any unfinished business will resume under Item 14 of the Regular Meeting 
of the Board Agenda. 

4.3.3 In-Camera 
Confidentiality and 
Fiduciary Obligations  

Matters discussed In-Camera are privileged and confidential and Trustees 
shall maintain their fiduciary obligations.  All reports prepared in support 
of an item on the In-Camera Agenda which is not open to the pubic shall 
be received in confidence and the materials and discussion shall be treated 
as confidential.  

4.3.4 Reporting Decisions at 
Public Session 

Information received In-Camera may be reported in public session, except 
as required to remain in the In-Camera minutes.  

4.3.5 In-Camera Matters Motions adopted or defeated will be recorded in the In-Camera minutes.  

4.3.6 Attendance at the In-
Camera Meetings 

The Director shall attend In-Camera meetings.  The Board or the Director 
may require the presence of Supervisory Officers and may admit other 
persons to In-Camera meetings. The Supervisory Officers or other such 
persons shall withdraw at the direction of the Chair or the Director when 
special circumstances warrant.  

4.3.7 Breach of Code of 
Conduct and/or 
Fiduciary Obligations 

A Trustee who has reasonable grounds to believe that another Trustee has 
breached In-Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative 
requirements, or requirements of this By-Law, may bring the alleged 
breach to the attention of the Board. 
 
If an alleged breach is brought to the attention of the Board, the Board 
shall make inquiries into the matter and shall, based on the results of the 
inquiries, determine whether there has been a breach. 
 
If the Board determines that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law, the Board may impose one or more of the 
following sanctions: 

(a) Verbal warning by the Chair. 
(b) A letter of warning. 

(c) Censure of the Trustee. 
(d) Barring the Trustee from attending all or part of a meeting of the 

Board or a meeting of a committee of the Board. 
(e) Barring the Trustee from sitting on one or more committees of the 

Board, for the period of time specified by the Board. 

A Trustee who is barred from attending all or part of a meeting of the 
Board or a meeting of a committee of the Board is not entitled to receive 
any materials that relate to that meeting or that part of the meeting and 
that are not available to the members of the public. 
In appropriate circumstances, the Board may also resolve to disassociate 
the Board from any action or statement of a Trustee. 
 
In addition to the sanctions above, the Board may declare the office of the 
Chair and/or Vice-Chair to be vacant effective as of the date of the Board’s 
determination, where the Chair and/or Vice-Chair: 

(a) becomes disqualified as a Trustee; 

57



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 7 of 19 
 

(b) deliberately breaches any relevant legislation or other Ministry of 
Education requirements; 

(c) deliberately breaches any Board By-Laws, Policies, General 
Administrative Procedures or practices; and/or 

(d) acts in such a manner as to lose the confidence of the Board. 
 

If a Board determines that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law, the Board shall give the Trustee written 
notice of the determination and of any sanction imposed by the Board. 
The notice shall inform the Trustee that he or she may make written 
submissions to the Board in respect of the determination or sanction by 
the date specified in the notice that is at least 14 days after the notice is 
received by the Trustee. 
 
The Board shall consider any submissions made by the Trustee and shall 
confirm or revoke the determination within 14 days after the Trustee’s 
submissions are received. 
 

If the Board revokes a determination that a Trustee has breached In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, 
or requirements of this By-Law, any sanction imposed by the Board is also 
revoked. 

 
If the Board confirms a determination that a Trustee has breached In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, 
or requirements of this By-Law, the Board shall, within 14 days after the 
Trustee’s submissions were received, confirm, vary or revoke the 
sanction(s) imposed by the Board. 
 
If a sanction is varied or revoked, the variation or revocation shall be 
deemed to be effective as of the date the original determination about the 
alleged breach was made by the Board. 

 
Despite subsection 207(1) of the Education Act which requires meetings of 
the Board to be open to the public, but subject to the requirements below 
for specific resolutions of the Board to be made in public, the Board may 
close to the public the part of the meeting during which a breach or 
alleged breach of In-Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any 
legislative requirements, or requirements of this By-Law, is considered 
when the breach or alleged breach involves any of the following matters: 

(a) the security of the property of the Board; 
(b) the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 

of a Trustee or committee, an employee or prospective employee of 
the Board or a student or his or her parent or guardian; 

(c) the acquisition or disposal of a school site; 
(d) decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board; or 
(e) litigation affecting the Board. 
 
The Board shall do the following things by resolution at a meeting of the 
Board, and the vote on the resolution shall be open to the public: 

58



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 8 of 19 
 

(a) Make a determination that a Trustee has breached In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 

(b) Impose a sanction on a Trustee for a breach of In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 

(c) Confirm or revoke a determination regarding a Trustee’s breach of In-
Camera confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative 
requirements, or requirements of this By-Law. 

(d) Confirm, vary or revoke a sanction after confirming or revoking a 
determination regarding a Trustee’s breach of In-Camera 
confidentiality, any Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or 
requirements of this By-Law. 
 

A Trustee who is alleged to have breached In-Camera confidentiality, any 
Code of Conduct, any legislative requirements, or requirements of this 
By-Law shall not vote on any of the resolutions listed above. 

When a resolution listed above is passed, the resolution shall be recorded 
in the Minutes of the meeting. 
 

The Statutory Powers Procedure Act does not apply to any the 
enforcement provisions under section 218.3 of the Education Act. 

 
Nothing in this provision prevents a Trustee’s breach of the Municipal  
Conflict of Interest Act from being dealt with in accordance with that Act.  

4.3.8 In-Camera Topics In accordance with the Act, a meeting of the Board may be closed to the 
public when the subject matter under consideration involves, 
the security of the property of the Board; 

(i) the disclosure of intimate, personal or financial information in respect 
of a member of the Board or committee, an employee or prospective 
employee of the Board or a pupil or a parent or guardian; 

(ii) the acquisition of disposal of a school site; or 
(iii) decisions in respect of negotiations with employees of the Board;  

4.4 ELECTRONIC MEETINGS (POLICY 1-28) 

4.4.1 Attendance A Trustee and/or Student Trustee who requests to participate in a meeting 
of the Board by electronic means and participates by such means in 
accordance with Board policy for the use of electronic means shall be 
deemed to be present at the meeting and shall be counted as part of the 
quorum and shall be entitled to vote on any matter on which he/she is 
eligible to vote.   

4.4.2 Physical Presence The Chair of the Board or designate, the Director of Education or designate 
and one other Trustee shall be physically present at all open and In-
Camera (closed) sessions of an electronic meeting of the Board in the 
Board Room or at a site or sites as otherwise determined by the Board.  

4.4.3 Vote by Secret Ballot 
 

 

In cases where a vote for the election of the Chair and Vice-Chair is to be 
conducted by secret ballot in accordance with the Board’s By-Laws, or the 
requirements of the Education Act or for any other reason, a Trustee who 
is eligible to vote on the matter, who is present at the meeting  by 
electronic means and who chooses to vote, may at the time votes are 
being cast, cast his or her vote by means of a private telephone 
conversation or by  e-mail with the scrutineer(s) who shall mark the vote 
on a paper ballot in the same form and manner as though the ballot had 

59



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 9 of 19 
 

been marked in person by the voter, and the ballot shall then be included 
with the other ballots to be counted. The ballots cast electronically in this 
matter are subject to the same obligations of confidentiality on the part of 
the scrutineer(s) as those cast by voters physically present at the meeting.  

 

5. QUORUM 
 

5.1 Quorum of the Board A majority of all Trustees of the Board, except for Student Trustees, shall 
constitute a quorum for Meetings of the Board. 

5.2 Declaring Pecuniary 
Interests 

When a Trustee declares pecuniary interests under the Municipal Conflict 
of Interest Act, the number of Trustees that constitutes a quorum in Article 
5.1 is adjusted as directed by the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act.  

5.3 If Quorum not Present If quorum is not present within fifteen (15) minutes after the time 
appointed for a meeting, the Board shall not convene and the Secretary 
shall record the names of Trustees present and the Board shall forthwith 
stand adjourned until the next Regular Meeting of the Board. 

5.4 Recording Lack of 
Quorum 

When a quorum is no longer in attendance, no business can be legally 
transacted and it shall be the responsibility of the presiding Chair and the 
Recording Secretary to note the lack of a quorum and have the fact 
recorded in the minutes and adjourn the meeting.  

5.5 Recording Trustees’ 
Absence   

When a member is absent from a Regular Meeting of the Board, for 
business or personal reasons, such absence and the reason for same be 
recorded in the minutes.  The Board may, by motion, grant permission for 
the absence and said resolution shall be entered in the minutes.  A 
member shall notify the Secretary prior to the Board meeting that the 
member will not be in attendance.  

5.6 Arrival and Departure 
Times 

The arrival time and departure time of Trustees must be recorded.  

 

6. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6.1 Delivery A member of the Board shall notify the Secretary in writing of the 
member's official address.  All notices or communications delivered 
electronically, or if necessary, mailed to the member at the address as 
given, shall be deemed to have been received by the member.  

 

7. COMMITTEES 
 

7.1 Committees Committees will meet as required, at the call of their respective Chairs, 
and may bring recommendations to the Board of Trustees for approval.  

7.2 AD HOC/STANDING COMMITTEES 

7.2.1 Establishment process   An Ad Hoc/Standing Committee may be established with the approval of 
the majority of the members of the Board for any purpose or need of the 
Board and will convene as required.  Each Ad Hoc/Standing Committee will 
report directly to the Board.  When its mandate is completed, the Ad Hoc 
Committee will step down. 

7.2.2 Committee 
Composition  

Following consultation with Trustees, the Chair shall present for Board 
confirmation, Trustee appointments to all Standing and Ad Hoc 
committees.   

60



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 10 of 19 
 

7.2.3 Election of Chair Having established the composition of the Ad Hoc/Standing Committee, 
the Committee, at its first meeting, shall select the Chair of the 
Committee.   

7.2.4 Initial Meeting An Ad Hoc/Standing Committee shall be first convened within one month 
of the date of the resolution appointing such committee and thereafter as 
determined by the Committee.  

7.2.5 Terms of Reference The Terms of Reference, duties/mandate and timelines shall be specifically 
outlined and approved by the Board following the initial meeting of the 
Committee.  

7.2.6 
 

Existence Ad Hoc Committees shall exist until the Committee presents its final 
recommendation to the Board for approval and thereafter dissolved; or at 
any time upon resolution of the Board; in any event, at the end of the term 
of office for the Board.   
 
Standing Committees shall exist such time upon resolution of the Board; in 
any event, at the end of the term of office of the Board.  

7.2.7 Non Members An Ad Hoc Committee may include members who are not members of the 
Board to deal with matters as assigned to it by the Board.  

7.2.8 Right to Speak of 
Members 

All Trustee members of Ad Hoc/Standing Committees shall have the right 
to speak to the report of the Committee when it is brought to the Board 
for consideration.  Members of the Committee who are not Trustees may 
be allowed to address the Board at the discretion of the Chair.  

7.2.9 Chair – Member of 
Committees 

The Chair or, in the Chair’s absence, the Vice-Chair of the Board shall be a 
member ex officio of Statutory, Ad Hoc  or Standing Committees 
established pursuant to  Article 2.11.  

7.2.10 Participation of 
Trustees Non-Members 

Any Trustee who is not a member of a committee may take part in the 
proceedings of the Committee but may not vote or move any motion, nor 
shall such Trustee be part of any quorum.  

7.2.11 Substitute Chair for 
Committees  

When a Committee Chair is unable to attend a meeting of the Board or a 
meeting of the/a Committee, the Committee Chair shall appoint a member 
of the Committee to substitute.  

7.2.12 Chair  The Chair may serve as Chair of an Ad Hoc or Standing Committee.  

7.2.13 Report to the Board The Committee shall make recommendations only on matters falling 
within the Committees’ Terms of Reference. Committees appointed to 
report on any matter referred to them by the Board shall report in writing 
to the Board. A minority of any committee may also report.  

7.3 STATUTORY COMMITTEES 

7.3.1  Members of the Board will be appointed to such committees as outlined in 
the Education Act and the regulations made thereunder. 

 

8. ROLE AND DUTIES OF THE CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF THE BOARD 
 

8.1 Role of Chair In addition to any other duties under the Act, the Chair of a Board shall,  
(a) preside over meetings of the Board; 
(b) conduct the meetings in accordance with this By-Law or other 

procedures and practices for the conduct of Board Meetings, and shall 
preserve order and decide all questions of order subject to an appeal 
to the board; 

(c) establish agendas for Board meetings, in consultation with the Board’s 
Director of Education; 

61



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 11 of 19 
 

(d) ensure that members of the Board have the information needed for 
informed discussion of the agenda items; 

(e) convey the decisions of the Board to the Board’s Director of Education; 
(f) provide leadership to the Board in maintaining the Board’s focus on 

the multi-year plan established under section 169.1 of the Act; 
(g) provide leadership to the Board in maintaining the Board’s focus on 

the Board’s mission and vision; and 
(h) assume such other responsibilities as may be specified by the Board. 

8.2 Absence of Chair In the absence of the Chair for any meeting, or part thereof, the Vice-Chair 
shall preside at the meeting and perform all duties appropriate to the 
Chair. 

8.3 Absence of Chair and 
Vice-Chair 

In the case of the absence of both the Chair and the Vice-Chair and where 
there is a quorum in attendance, the Secretary or designate shall call the 
meeting to order and a Chair who shall be chosen by the members present 
shall preside and act during such absence.  

8.4 Absence of Chair, Vice-
Chair and Secretary to 
the Board 

If the Chair, Vice-Chair and the Secretary are absent for the opening of a 
meeting and there is a quorum in attendance, the members present shall 
appoint a Chair and Secretary pro tem.  

8.5 Working Staff 
Committees 

When the Director requests a Trustee representative to sit on the Working 
Staff Committee, the Chair may sit on the Committee or select a designate 
representative based on interest, availability and existing commitments. 
The Chair, in consultation with Trustee members, shall ensure an equitable 
distribution of Trustee membership on committees.  

8.6 Official Representative 
of the Board 

The Chair or designate chosen by the Chair from among the other Trustees 
shall be an official representative of the Board at all public functions. 

8.7 Signing Authority and 
Public Announcements 

The Chair shall be an official signing officer of the Board and shall act as 
spokesperson to the public on behalf of the Board, unless otherwise 
determined by the Board for specific matters. Where the Chair of the 
Board is making public announcements, he/she shall represent the 
position of the Board.   

8.8 Signing Authority in the 
Chair’s Absence  

The Vice-Chair shall be an official signing officer of the Board and shall 
assume all the responsibilities, privileges and duties of the Chair in the 
absence or incapacity of the Chair for a period exceeding forty-eight (48) 
hours. 

8.9 Chair - Reporting 
Absence 

The Chair shall notify the Vice-Chair of his or her impending absence or 
incapacity. 

8.10 Death or Resignation of 
the Chair 

In the event of death or resignation of the Chair of the Board during the 
year, the Vice-Chair shall assume the Chair until the first Regular Meeting 
of the Board in December following.  

8.11 Death or Resignation of 
Vice-Chair 

In the event of the position of Vice-Chair becoming vacant for any reason 
(death, resignation or assuming the role of the Chair), a new Vice-Chair 
shall be elected, at the next meeting in accordance with Section 3.6.3.  

 

9. AGENDA 
 

9.1 Provision of Draft 
Agenda to Trustees 

A draft Agenda will be sent electronically to each member, seven (7) days 
prior to the next meeting.  

9.2 Provision of Final 
Agenda – Regular 
Meetings 

For Regular Meetings of the Board, the final Agenda and supporting 
documentation will be provided to each Trustee and Student Trustee on 
the Friday preceding the date of the meeting. 

62



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 12 of 19 
 

9.3 Provision of Final 
Agenda – Special Board 
Meeting 

The Secretary shall notify each member of the Board of any Special 
Meeting of the Board and distribution of Agenda and background material, 
where feasible, at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of such meeting 
(excluding Saturdays and Sundays) previous to the time at which such 
meeting is to take place.  

9.4 Posting Agenda The Board Agenda will be available on the Board’s Website on the Friday 
preceding the Board Meeting.  

9.5 Order of Business The order of Business for Regular meetings of the Board shall be as 
follows: 
(1) Call to Order 

o Opening Prayer, National Anthem and the Oath of Citizenship 
o Motions Adopted In-Camera 
o Information Received In-Camera 

(2) Approval of Agenda: The Agenda shall be confirmed and may be 
amended (Refer to  By-Laws 9.6 & 9.7) 

(3) Declarations of Conflict of Interest: The Chair calls for those members 
present to disclose any conflict of interest on any matter which is to 
be the subject of consideration at the meeting.  

(4) Presentations: Of general nature  and might recognize outstanding 
achievements 

(5) Delegations: Refer to delegations to the Board – By-Law # 12 
(6) Approval of Minutes: To be considered by Trustees only with 

reference to the accuracy of the minutes as recorded. Corrections, 
additions or deletions shall be presented as motions, voted upon and 
recorded in the new minutes.  

(7) Business Arising from Previous Meetings: No topic under this item of 
the Agenda shall be introduced in the same context as the preceding 
meeting and any matter raised for discussion shall be considered only 
if further information is available and relative to the situation. Under 
this item, Trustee or staff may present new information related to 
business in the minutes and Trustees may question staff relevant to 
any follow-up action resulting from a decision or matter reported in 
the minutes.  

(8) Action Items: Reports presented requiring decision by the Board of 
Trustees.  

(9) Staff Reports: Staff reports requiring a decision or presenting 
information about the system, are presented under this section. The 
report may be presented as an Action Report at a future Board 
meeting.  

(10) Information Reports: Verbal or written reports to the Board that 
promotes student success and other issues of general nature.  

(11) Miscellaneous Information: Information of general nature, including 
notices. 

(12) Correspondence:  All correspondence requiring the collective decision 
of the Board and which has yet to be decided by the Board shall be 
tabled for Board consideration and direction. The Board shall provide 
direction as to how either the Chair or Secretary of the Board shall 
respond.  

(13) Open Question Period (ten minutes) – The Chair may recognize a 
member of the public in attendance at the meeting (refer to By- Law # 
13) 

63



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 13 of 19 
 

(14) In-Camera: Unfinished business; only those matters which fall under 
the Education Act may be discussed.  

(15) Resolution re Absentees: The Chair shall report in accordance with 
Section 5.5 of the Board By-Laws.  

(16) Adjournment/Closing Prayer 

9.6 Items on the Agenda Agenda of meetings of the Board shall be prepared by the Chair and Vice-
Chair, in consultation with the Secretary.  No matter shall be placed on the 
Agenda of a meeting of the Board unless: 

 It results from the report from a Committee and relates to a matter 
that has been referred to it by action of the  Board;  

 It is a report from Administration; 

 It is pursuant to a Notice of Motion made by an individual Trustee 
under the provisions of section # 9.12;  

 It is a matter that, in the opinion of the Secretary, requires action by 
the Board as matter of urgency; 

 Any Trustee may request that an item, other than an action item, be 
placed upon the Agenda and the Trustee shall give seven (7) days 
notice of such proposed Agenda items in writing to the Secretary. The 
Secretary and the Chair may in their discretion add such proposed 
Agenda items to the Agenda.  

9.7 Items not included on 
the Agenda 

Items not included on the Agenda at the start of the Board Meeting shall 
be handled in the following manner: 

 Any item for discussion or information only may be included on the 
Agenda with the consent of two-thirds of members present and 
eligible to vote.  

 Any item requiring action or policy decisions shall only be included on 
the Agenda with the unanimous consent of the whole Board present 
and eligible to vote.  

9.8 Segregating Matters of 
In-Camera Session 

The Agenda shall segregate matters to be considered in private sessions 
and no public disclosure of said private session matters shall be made.  

9.9 Agenda for Special 
Board Meetings 

The provisions of Section 9.5 apply, with necessary variations, to Special 
Meetings of the Board.  

9.10 Agenda for Meeting 
from which the public is 
excluded 

The provisions of Section 9.5 apply, with necessary variations, to the order 
of business for Meetings of committees that are not open to the public.  

9.11 Variation Variations in the Order of Business prescribed in 9.8, 9.9, 9.10 shall be 
permitted with the consent of the majority of Trustees as the case may be, 
who are present an eligible to vote, and such consent shall be ascertained 
without debate.  

9.12 Notice of Motion A Trustee may place a Notice of Motion, regarding any matter with respect 
to which the Trustee has a right to vote, upon the Agenda of the next 
regularly scheduled meeting. Such notice of motion:  

 Shall be made during the Approval of the Agenda and added as an 
Information Item of a regularly scheduled Board Meeting; 

 Shall be submitted in writing at the Regular Meeting of the Board and 
recorded in its minutes for consideration by the Board at its next 
Regular meeting; 

 Shall take the form “At the next regular scheduled meeting of the 
Board I shall move or cause to be moved that….”;   

 Shall not be subject of any debate or comment at the meeting at 
which it is introduced;  

64



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 14 of 19 
 

 Shall be accompanied by an explanatory notice prior to the draft 
Agenda being distributed; and 

 Shall, after its appearance on the Agenda, be taken as read unless any 
Trustee requests that it be read in full. 

 

10. MOTIONS 
 

10.1 Moved and Seconded  All motions at meetings must be moved and seconded before being 
accepted by the Chair. No motion shall be debated or put to a vote unless 
it has been recorded.  

10.2 Authority to Read Any member may request the motion under discussion to be read at any 
time in the course of the debate, provided that no such request shall be 
made so as to interrupt a member speaking to the question.  

10.3 Open and Close Debate 
on Main Motion 

The mover of a duly seconded motion will open and close debate on the 
motion.  The mover may open debate for a time limit of five minutes and 
close debate for a period of up to three minutes.  All other members may 
only speak once to the motion for a period of three minutes.  No member 
shall speak longer than three minutes to a motion without leave of the 
Chair.  This does not prohibit a member from raising a point of privilege, a 
point of order, or a point of clarification.  

10.4 Open and Close Debate 
on Amendments 

The same procedures as in By-law 10.3 will apply to amendments.  

10.5 Authority to Speak Any member desiring to speak shall indicate by up-raised hand and await 
recognition by the Chair. Speakers may speak when recognized by the 
Chair, and may not speak to the issue again until all other Trustees who 
wish to speak have been recognized by the Chair.  

10.6 Speakers’ List It is the responsibility of the Chair to maintain a speakers’ list.  

10.7 Code of Conduct Having been recognized to speak, a member shall respect the Board’s Code 
of Conduct.   

10.8 Interruption  No member shall be interrupted while speaking except to be called to 
order by a member on a matter of privilege or a point of order.  In such 
case, the member shall remain silent until the point of order has been 
decided by the Chair.  A member so interrupting shall speak to the point of 
order or in explanation only.  

10.9 Recognition of Motions When a question is under debate, the following motions shall be 
recognized in order of precedence: 

Motion Conditions 
To adjourn Not debatable 
Suspend the rules Not debatable 2/3 majority 
To lay on the table Not debatable 

To postpone to a later time (defer)  
To refer  
To amend  

To postpone indefinitely  
 

10.10 Order of Precedence  The following order of precedence may be addressed to the Chair and in 
so doing interrupt the Trustee on the floor: 

Motion Conditions 
Question of privilege Chair to determine 
Point of order Chair to rule 
Appeal ( a decision of Chair) Requires a seconder 
Objection to consideration Non-debatable, 2/3 required 

 

65



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 15 of 19 
 

10.11 Subdivision of Question When a question under consideration contains two or more distinct 
propositions, any particular propositions, upon the request of any 
member, may be considered and voted upon separately.  

10.12 Chair Taking Part in 
Debate 

Should the Chair elect to vacate the Chair to take part in any debate or 
discussion or for any other reason, the Chair shall call upon the Vice-Chair, 
or in the Vice-Chair’s absence, one of the Trustees, to assume the duties of 
the Chair until the Chair resumes it.  The Vice-Chair or any Trustee 
temporarily occupying the Chair, shall discharge all the duties and enjoy all 
the rights of the Chair during the ensuing proceedings only.  

10.13 Point of Order When the Chair is called upon to decide a point of order or practice, the 
Chair shall, before deciding, state the rule applicable to the case, without 
comment.  

10.14 Order of Questions All questions shall be put in the order in which they are moved, except the 
amendments shall be put before the main motion, the last amendment 
first.  

10.15 To Postpone A motion to postpone to a certain time or day, takes precedence over 
motions to committee or refer, to amend and to postpone indefinitely. 
Only the time to which the motion is postponed can be debated and is 
amendable (by altering the time).  

10.16 To Refer A motion to refer to a Standing Committee shall take precedence over a 
motion to refer to a Special Committee or to Administration. 

10.17 To Amend After a resolution is moved and seconded, a motion to amend may be 
made; a motion to amend the amendment may be made.  No further 
motion to amend shall be made until these have been decided 

10.18 To Lay on the  Table A motion to lay on the table is not debatable; and issued for the purpose 
of allowing the Board or Committee to deal with some other matter at the 
same meeting prior to dealing with the matter temporarily laid on the 
table.  A matter laid on the table may be dealt with at the same meeting 
or at a subsequent meeting. 

10.19 To Withdraw After a motion is read by the Chair, it shall be deemed to be in possession 
of the Board.  A motion may, by consensus, be withdrawn for the purpose 
of obtaining further relevant information and/or background to be 
included when this will serve to clarify the motion.  

10.20 To Reconsider The Board may set aside a vote taken on a motion in order to re-examine 
its action if a motion to reconsider is made at the same meeting as the 
original vote.  A Trustee who voted with the prevailing side must present 
the motion to reconsider.  The motion to reconsider will require an 
affirmative vote of the majority of the members present and eligible to 
vote.  The reconsideration may occur at the same meeting.  

10.21 To Postpone 
Indefinitely  

A motion to postpone indefinitely is to remove the main motion from the 
assembly’s consideration for the session without a direct vote on it.  The 
motion is debatable.  

10.22 Motion Lost A motion if lost, shall not again be entertained at the same meeting.  

10.23 To Rescind The Board may annul an action it has taken at a previous meeting by a 
motion to rescind the objectionable resolution, order or other proceeding; 
and this motion will require an affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the 
members present who are eligible to vote on the matter to pass.  A 
motion to rescind any former action of the Board may be made by any 
member, provided that a written notice of intention to move the 
rescission shall have been given at a previous meeting of the Board.  Once 
a motion to rescind has been decided in the negative, no further motion to 

66



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 16 of 19 
 

rescind shall be entertained for the next twelve months without the 
unanimous consent of all Trustees present and eligible to vote on the 
matter.  
 
A motion to rescind is not in order if the previous resolution has been 
acted upon and cannot be reversed.  

10.24 Receipt of Reports To ‘receive‘ means that the Board receives a report or document without 
denoting agreement or disagreement.  

10.25 To Adjourn A motion to adjourn shall be in order except when a Trustee is speaking, 
or a vote is taken.  A motion to adjourn shall not be open to amendment 
or debate, but a motion to adjourn to a certain time may be amended and 
debated.  
 
After a motion to adjourn has been defeated, no second motion to the 
same effect shall be made until after some intermediate proceedings shall 
have been made.  

10.26 Recording of all 
Motions 

All motions, carried and defeated, must be recorded in the minutes.  

 

11. VOTING 
 

11.1 Voting Every Trustee present, excluding those that have declared an interest as 
required by the Municipal Conflict of Interest Act, may vote on all 
questions on which the Trustee is entitled to vote.  Although it is desirable 
that a Trustee should record a vote in each case, the Chair has no power 
to compel a vote.  

11.2 Right to Vote Only Trustees present or deemed to be present at the meeting when a 
vote is taken shall have the right to vote.  

11.3 Recounting Votes When a vote takes place on any motion, the votes of the Trustees may be 
recounted at the request of a Trustee.  A Trustee may, by request, have an 
item or items within any report, voted on separately.  

11.4 Affirmative Vote 
Required 

Except as otherwise provided in these By-laws, an affirmative vote shall 
require a majority of the votes of the Trustees who do vote (abstentions 
count as a non-vote).  

11.5 Minimum Number Any matter, on which there are fewer than two Trustees eligible to vote at 
a Committee meeting, shall stand referred to the Board.  

11.6 Methods of Voting Although the method requested by any person eligible to vote should be 
used to the extent practicable, the particular method of voting to be used 
to dispose of any matter shall be governed by the following rules: 

  By general (or unanimous) consent, in which the Chair exercising 
discretion, states that the motion will be adopted in the absence of 
objection;  

  By show of hands, in which each person eligible to vote raises their  
hand in response to the request of the Chair for the votes, in the 
affirmative and in the negative, as the case may be, until the votes are 
counted;  

  For recorded vote, each person eligible to vote stands in place in 
response to the requests of the Chair for the votes in the affirmative 
and in the negative, as the case may be, until the Chair has called the 
name of each person as voting, respectively, in the affirmative, or in 
the negative.   

67



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 17 of 19 
 

  All final motions under “Action Items” of Regular/Special Board 
Meetings as well as Regular/Special Board In-Camera Meetings require 
a recorded vote and will be included in the minutes of said meeting. 

 By ballot, if it specifically applies to the election of the Chair or Vice 
Chair, in which each person eligible to vote shall mark on a paper 
provided by the Secretary, the person’s choice from among the 
available alternatives, the papers being collected and counted 
immediately thereafter.   

11.7 Ruling of the Chair The ruling of the Chair shall be final, subject only to an appeal of the ruling 
to the Board or by a member, without debate. Such appeal shall be voted 
upon and a simple majority carries such a motion.  

11.8 Student Trustees Student Trustee votes shall not be counted in determining any Board 
decision.  

11.9 Right of the Chair to 
Vote 

The Chair may vote with the other members of the Board upon all 
motions, and any motion on which there is an equality of votes is lost.   

11.10 Vote Lost on Equality Any motion on which there is an equality of votes is lost. 

11.11 Declaration of Result The Chair shall declare the result of all votes.  After the Chair has put a 
question to vote, there shall be no further debate and no member shall 
walk across or out of the room. The decision of the Chair as to whether 
the question has been finally put shall be conclusive.  

12. DELEGATIONS AND SUBMISSIONS 
Policy I-6 

12.1 Purpose  A delegation wishing to make a presentation to the Board will submit the 
request in writing to the Secretary of the Board. 

12.2 Request to be Heard The request shall be received by the Secretary at least seven (7) days prior 
to the meeting of the Board. 

12.3 Nature of the 
presentation 

The request shall outline in some detail the nature of the presentation and 
indicate who the spokesperson will be for the group or organization. 

12.4 Brief A copy of the complete presentation must be provided to the Secretary of 
the Board at least four (4) business days (by 1:00 p.m.) prior to the Regular 
Board meeting. The presenter(s) will highlight the pertinent points in their 
presentation to the Board. 

12.5 Time Available – 
Delegations 

The delegation will be allowed a time of ten (10) minutes for their 
presentation. 

12.6 Commercial Enterprises 
Prohibited 

Commercial enterprises are prohibited from appearing before the Board 
as a delegation for purposes of promoting their products/services.  

12.7 Response from the 
Board 

The Board may make a decision on the presentation at the same meeting, 
refer the matter to a future meeting, request a staff report on the matter 
to be considered at a future meeting or receive as information.  Once the 
decision is made, the Secretary of the Board will communicate the Board's 
decision in writing to the spokesperson for the group or organization.  

 

13. OPEN QUESTION PERIOD 
 

13.1 Purpose  The purpose of the Open Question Period is to allow specific questions to 
the Board on any aspect of the Board’s public operations.  

13.2 Requirements Questions shall be submitted, in writing prior to the commencement of 
the meeting, along with the name, address and telephone number of the 
questioner.  

13.3 Validity of Questions The Chair will determine the validity of the questions. 

  

68



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 18 of 19 
 

13.4 Timing The open question period will last a maximum of ten (10) minutes, with 
each questioner allowed a maximum of two (2) minutes. 

13.5 Response The Chair will attempt to provide a response or direct the question to 
another Trustee or the Director of Education.  If no immediate response 
can be given, a response will be communicated to the questioner at the 
earliest possible date.  Copies of any written response to a question will be 
provided to Trustees and added to the minutes of a subsequent meeting. 

13.6 Out of Order Questions concerning the character or performance of named individuals 
or positions identified as such (students, teachers, staff, citizens or 
Trustees) shall be ruled out of order by the Chair.  

13.7 Employees of the Board Employees of the Board or representatives of employee groups shall not 
utilize the Open Question Period to express their views relative to their 
employment or professional interests.  

13.8 Questions/Petitions/ 
Enquiries 

All questions, petitions, enquiries or communications on any subject shall, 
upon presentation, be referred by the Chair to the appropriate meeting 
without a motion, unless otherwise determined by a majority of all 
members present. 

 

14. AMENDMENT OF BY-LAWS 
 

14.1 Purpose  An individual Trustee may give notice of an amendment, alteration or 
addition to the by-laws.  Such notice will be referred to the Policy 
Committee for study and report. 

14.2 Review Process The By-Laws of the Halton Catholic District School Board shall be reviewed 
every four (4) years by the Board. 

14.3 Temporary Suspension 
of By-laws - Voting 

The Board may temporarily suspend a provision of these By-Laws by a 
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the members of the Board, except where 
the provision is grounded in an obligation imposed by law.  

14.4 Timing on Agenda A temporary suspension of the By-Laws shall expire at the end of the 
meeting in which the By-Laws are suspended, unless the Board determines 
otherwise. 

14.5 Timing of Suspension No temporary suspension of the By-Laws shall extend beyond the current 
meeting of the Board.  

 

15. REPORTING BY WAY OF MINUTES 

15.1 Reporting Every Committee shall report after each of its meetings by way of the 
delivery of Minutes in either approved or unapproved form, segregating 
matters that have been considered public session from those that have 
been considered in private session and no public disclosure shall be made 
of these matters considered in private session.  

15.2 Duty of the Board The Board shall keep minutes. 

15.3 Content of Minutes Minutes of meetings of every committee and Board meeting shall contain 
the following information:  

 The name of the body meeting; 

 The date of the meeting; 

 Whether the meeting was a regular or special meeting. 

 The name of each Trustee who has disclosed any interest in any 
matter on the Agenda of such meeting, an identification of the matter 
in which the Trustee disclosed the interest and, if the public was not 
excluded from the meeting, the general nature of the interest 
disclosed.  

69



 

(Amended – June 21, 2016)  Page 19 of 19 
 

 The names of the Trustees, senior staff, external consultants, Board 
auditors or Board solicitors who were present, noting the time of 
arrival and departure.  

 The resolutions and recommendations adopted by the Board. 

 The time of adjournment. 

 

16. DUTIES AND POWER OF SCHOOL TRUSTEES 
 

16.1 Duties of the Board As members of the Board, representing all Catholic School ratepayers in 
the Regional Municipality of Halton, Trustees recognize: 
 

That the duties of the Halton Catholic District School Board and its 
Trustees shall be the duties as defined in the Education Act and in the 
Regulations of Ontario;  the By-Laws, Policies and Procedures, Mission and 
Vision Statement of the Halton Catholic District School Board and the 
declaration of Office.  

16.2 Governing Power Members will exercise their power to govern only as Trustees of the 
corporate body, not as individuals.   

 

70



 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

71

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-11%20International%20Student%20Admission%20Requirements%20(Fee%20Paying%20Students).pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-94%20International%20Student%20Program%20-%20Agents%20of%20Fee%20Paying%20Students.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-22%20Admission%20to%20Schools%20Elementary%20and%20Secondary.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-19%20Admission%20to%20Schools%20Elementary%20and%20Secondary.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/II-39%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20In%20Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-44%20Progressive%20Discipline%20and%20Safety%20in%20Schools.pdf
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02#BK62


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

   

 

   

  

 

72

https://isp.hcdsb.org/
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/policyfunding/strategyK12.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

73

https://isp.hcdsb.org/
https://isp.hcdsb.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

74



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



 

 

 

 

76



 

77



 

                        

 

 

 

 

 

78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

79



 

o 

o 

o 

80



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81



 

                        

 

 

82

https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-30-Video-Surveillance.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-02-Records-and-Information-Management.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-82-Records-and-Information-Management-Procedure.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/I-07-Protection-of-Privacy.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-81-Privacy-Procedure.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-51-Privacy-Breach-Procedure.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/II-24-Home-to-School-Student-Transportation.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-07-Transportation-of-Students-in-Private-Vehicles-Driven-by-other-Students.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/II-39-Progressive-Discipline-and-Safety-In-Schools.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/12/VI-44-Progressive-Discipline-and-Safety-in-Schools.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83

https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90e02
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/90m56
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/safeschools/code.html
https://www.ontario.ca/laws/statute/s00012
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.hcdsb.org%2Fwp-content%2Fuploads%2F2021%2F01%2FHalton-Regional-Police-Service-School-Board-and-Private-School-Protocol-2016.pdf&data=04%7C01%7CDiPietroR%40hcdsb.org%7Cc26880da9d864f1431be08d8c2332190%7C2537ab7d25bd498aa6427c135779e6d2%7C1%7C0%7C637472872144497514%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=zugEw4GvT92G7fV5%2B0dPlRxZWPROpQZXCX7879tYdLc%3D&reserved=0
https://www.ipc.on.ca/wp-content/uploads/Resources/2015_Guidelines_Surveillance.pdf
https://www.csc-scc.gc.ca/index-en.shtml
https://whatis.techtarget.com/definition/CCTV-closed-circuit-television


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.  

2. 

 

3. 

 

84



 

4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

86



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

87

https://hcdsb.formstack.com/forms/videorequest
https://hcdsb.formstack.com/forms/videorequest


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

88



 

 

 

 

 

 

89



 

90



 

91



 

All video surveillance, requests, including law enforcement, must be submitted using the following 

electronic form: 

https://hcdsb.formstack.com/forms/videorequest 

 

 

92

https://hcdsb.formstack.com/forms/videorequest


 

93



 

94



Summary of responses received from HCDSB School Councils regarding Procedure 

No. VI-84, Section – Requirements, Sub-section - Membership 

 

Background 

The HCDSB Board of Trustees asked School Councils for their input on the membership requirements as 

detailed in Procedure No. VI-84, Section - Requirements, Sub-section - Membership.   

By way of background, the Board has received the following anecdotal feedback that the Procedure: 

• is restrictive in that it limits the number of non-Catholic members and in certain 

situations/schools makes it difficult to fill all Parent Member positions on a School Council, 

• is not reflective of an inclusive environment,  

• should maintain a majority of Catholic membership on School Councils, reflective of our Catholic 

school system. 

School Council Chairs were asked to share this information with their School Council, discuss it and 

summarize their School Council's feedback, including any recommendations for potential changes to the 

Policy and/or Procedure. 

 

School Council Responses 

Of the 9 secondary schools and 45 elementary schools in the HCDSB, we received responses from 4 

secondary schools (44%) and 16 elementary schools (35%) 

As an open-ended question was posed to School Councils rather than a specific question, it is difficult to 

summarize the responses statistically.  In addition, some School Councils submitted each member’s 

point of view and others attempted to summarize the School Council’s combined view.   

It was pointed out in a few responses, that perhaps the procedure regarding School Council membership 

should be different for elementary and secondary schools. As Baptism of the child or parent is a 

requirement for entry into a HCDSB elementary school, every elementary school student generally has 

at least one Catholic parent. Conversely, in secondary schools, because registration is open to anyone, 

the proportion of students and parents that are not Catholic is significantly higher. As such, we have 

attempted to analyze the School Council responses for elementary schools and secondary schools 

separately. 

It is important to note that the responses received varied widely in their thoughts regarding the 

current procedure. However, taking into consideration all the responses, we feel the following themes 

emerged. 

Elementary School Councils 

There was general agreement for allowing the number of non-Catholics on School Council to increase. 

Some of the reasons that respondents indicated were at play in this decision was a desire to be inclusive 

and the ability to attract more School Council members. Other reasoning given included the fact that 

95



because at the elementary level one parent is Catholic, and the family has chosen to send their child to a 

Catholic school, both parents should be able to be involved in the School Council of their child’s school.   

Those opposed to increasing the number of non-Catholic members on School Council were primarily 

concerned about preserving Catholicity in our schools. On the contrary, two respondents did point out 

that School Councils are generally involved in fundraising and community events, so the number of non-

Catholics on School Council should not impact the school’s ability to ensure that Catholic values are 

upheld.  

Some responses specifically addressed whether the majority of School Council members should be 

Catholic. Of these responses, the more widely held view was that the majority of School Council 

members should be Catholic.  

Another issue addressed in some of the responses was whether the School Council Chair should be 

Catholic. Of these responses, the general consensus was that the Chair should be Catholic, however, 

several responses indicated that, in the case of Co-Chairs, only one Co-Chair needed to be Catholic. 

Secondary School Councils 

From the responses received, there were more responses supporting the possibility of increasing the 

number of non-Catholic members permitted on School Council, then those wishing to maintain the 

current number of non-Catholic members. Respondents supporting the increase indicated that the 

following reasons: non-Catholic members bring valuable input to the table, increasing the number of 

non-Catholic members would be more inclusive, increasing the number of non-Catholic members would 

more accurately reflect the school community, and that anyone who was willing to contribute their time 

should be able to.  

Those opposing the increase indicated that they felt the current policy was fine, that their School 

Councils did not have an issue attracting members and that we were already being inclusive in 

permitting two non-Catholic members.  

Also noteworthy was the comment that the non-Catholic School Council membership should be 

expressed as a percentage rather than a fixed number (i.e. 25% of council members rather than 2 

council members) 

Several responses indicated that the majority, or a significant majority, of School Council members 

should be Catholic (i.e. 50% or more) and that the Chair (or one Co-Chair) should be Catholic. 

Other Findings 

There were multiple respondents that were non-Catholic who indicated that they did not feel valued, or 

equal, due to their Non-Catholicity. 

The responses seemed to indicate that there may be some confusion at some schools regarding whether 

non-Catholic members can vote. A few responses specifically indicated that they did not permit non-

Catholics to vote even if they held a School Council seat. This is not inline with the current policy.  

One elementary school also noted that they do not have a limit on the number of School Council 

members permitted. 

96



 

                        

 

97

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-23%20Catholic%20School%20Councils%20and%20Catholic%20Parent%20Involvement%20Committee.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-34%20(B)%20Reimbursement%20of%20Board%20Business%20Expenses%20for%20Trustees%20and%20External%20Members%20of%20Board%20Committees.pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-34%20(B)%20Reimbursement%20of%20Board%20Business%20Expenses%20for%20Trustees%20and%20External%20Members%20of%20Board%20Committees.pdf
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwib1eLnocjgAhXSY98KHe-_BUUQFjAAegQICxAB&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fstatute%2F90e02&usg=AOvVaw0gfsNm4CmvXQoD6zEnjOvx
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiIjv7yocjgAhXsUd8KHawbAp8QFjAAegQIABAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2F000612&usg=AOvVaw3yG29a2_1RCDJqRxlg0sGX
https://www.google.ca/url?sa=t&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=web&cd=1&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwjAw__7ocjgAhXyV98KHZc5CFYQFjAAegQIBhAC&url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.ontario.ca%2Flaws%2Fregulation%2Fr10330&usg=AOvVaw2nXy6O96ym775qOtnLQjgc
http://www.hcdsb.org/Parents/CSCouncil/Documents/Catholic%20School%20Council%20Resource%20Binder.pdf
http://www.hcdsb.org/Parents/CSCouncil/Documents/Catholic%20School%20Council%20Resource%20Binder.pdf
http://www.edu.gov.on.ca/eng/general/elemsec/council/council02.pdf


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

99



 

 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

o 

 

100



 

o 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

101



 

 

 

102



 

                        

 

 

 

 

Education Act 

 

 

103

https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/I-11%20International%20Student%20Admission%20Requirements%20(Fee%20Paying%20Students).pdf
https://www.hcdsb.org/Board/Policies/PoliciesProcedures/VI-17%20International%20Student%20Admission%20Requirements%20(Non-Resident).pdf
HCDSB%20%20International%20Student%20Program


 

 

 

 

104

https://isp.hcdsb.org/
https://isp.hcdsb.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

105



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

106



Policy Committee Work Plan 

2020-2021 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






 

 

 

 

 

107



Policy Committee Work Plan 

2020-2021 

 

 

 

 

 





108



Policy Committee Work Plan 

2020-2021 

109


	Agenda
	2.2 Policy_2021_05_11_Minutes.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 Action Report I- 06 Delegaion to the Board.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 I-06 Delegation to the Board.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 Action Report - Policy I-11 International Students Admission Requirements (Fee-Paying Students).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 I-11 International Student Admission Requirements (Fee Paying Students).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 Action Report Policy I-23 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent Involvement Committee.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 I-23 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent Involvement Committee.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 I-26 Student Trustees on the Halton - Action Report.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.4 I-26 Student Trustees on the Halton Catholic District School Board.docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 Action Report II-09.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.5 II-09 Opening and Closing Exercises .docx.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 Action Report V-08 School Anniversary Celebrations.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.6 V-08 School Anniversary Celebrations.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 Action Report V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a New School.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.7 V-12 Blessing and Official Opening of a New School.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.8 Action Report V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a Major Addition to a School.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.8 V-13 Blessing and Rededication of a Major Addition to a School.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.9 Rescind Action Report IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.9 Rescind Policy IV-07 Alternative Arrangements for School Facilities.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.10 Rescind Action Report IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.10 Rescind Policy IV-08 School Sites and Operating Budget.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.11 Action Report Procedural Bylaws.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.11 2016 Procedural By-Laws - June 21 2016 (1).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.1 VI-17 International Student Admission Requirements (Non-Resident).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.2 VI-61 Recognition and Acknowledgement of Dignitaries, Board Officials at Board and School Events.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.3 VI-83 Video Surveillance Procedure.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.4 School Council feedback summary re Procedure VI-84.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.4 VI-84 Catholic School Councils and Catholic Parent Involvement Committee (RL).pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.5 VI-94 International Student Program - Agents of Fee Paying Students.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	6.6 Policy Committee Work Plan 2020-2021.pdf
	Back to Agenda


